
 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
February 09, 2016 

5:30 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” 
card to the Recording Secretary. 

 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held January 12, 2016, at 5:30 

p.m. 

 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 

Owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to 
“City” Office (Max. FAR 0.30), for property located at 1120 Clarcona Road and 1124 S. 
Park Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213) 

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” R-3 

(Residential) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I & Residential), for property 
located at 1120 Clarcona Road and 1124 S. Park Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-
0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213) 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN –Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center – Owned by 

Woolbright Wekiva, LLC, and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard. (Parcel ID #: 
12-21-28-9093-00-010) 

1



Page 2 
 

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Page 3 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held January 12, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. 
  

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 
P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Robert Ryan, Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler 
 
ABSENT: Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Kyle Wilkes, AICP - Planner II, Andrew Hand, 
Esq., Suzanne Kidd, Doug Bankson, Huy Tran, Ed Velazquez, Teresa Sargeant, and Jeanne Green – Community 
Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Mr. Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of silent 
prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 
 
CHAIRPERSON: 
 
MOTION: Pam Toler nominated James Greene as Chairperson of the Planning Commission and 

seconded by Linda Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Robert Ryan, 
Jeremiah, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0).  

 
VICE - CHAIRPERSON: 
 
MOTION: James Greene nominated Robert Ryan as Vice-Chairperson of the Planning Commission 

and seconded by Jeremiah Jaspon. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Robert Ryan, 
Jeremiah, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0).  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to the regular 
meeting minutes of December 8, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. minutes.   
 
Motion:      Jeremiah Jaspon made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the 

meeting held on December 8, 2015, regular meeting at 5:01 and seconded by Robert Ryan. 
Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Robert Ryan, Jeremiah, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam 
Toler (5-0).  

 
SWEARING-IN - Mr. Hand swore-in staff, the petitioners, and affected parties. 
 
LEGISLATIVE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
- Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Small Scale Future Land Use 
amendment from “County” Residential Low Density (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for 
property owned by the Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen and located at 904 Schopke Lester Road. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Kyle Wilkes, AICP, Planner II, stated this is a request to recommend approval of the 
Comprehensive Plan Small Scale Future Land Use amendment from “County” Residential Low Density (0-4 
du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for property owned by the Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen and 
located at 904 Schopke Lester Road.  The existing and proposed use is a single-family residence and aquaponics.  
The tract size is 4.42 +/- acres.  The existing maximum allowable development is 8 units and the proposed 
maximum allowable development is 1 unit. 
 
Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning 

category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land use designation of Residential Low (0 – 5 

du/acre) to the property.  

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 2, 2015, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2460.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 

owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as 4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 4.42 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) Future Land Use 

designation and the City’s proposed AG-E Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of residential units which could be developed 

at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary because the impacts on 

schools will be de minimus.  

 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 

properly notified Orange County on December 11, 2015. 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in Future 
Land Use from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) for the 
property owned by Huy Train and Hai Anh Nguyen and located at 904 Schopke Lester Road. 
 
This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part 

of the minutes of this meeting. 

                                                                                                                                                                          

LAND USE REPORT 

 

Land Use Analysis: 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the development of 
residential uses.  The property lies south of West Schopke Lester Road and north of West Highland Avenue. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 
subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Schopke Lester Rd.  The vegetative 
communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the 
terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.e Residential 
Low Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Residential Low (0-5 du/ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (City designation): 18 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 48 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 22 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 59 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  3528 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  4312 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 
6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   

 
2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  3780 GPD 

 
3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  4620 GPD 

 
4. Capacity available: Yes 

 
5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 
6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 
7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  192 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  236 lbs./person/day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Standish 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.144 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.177AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 
 
 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

5 

 

In response to a question by Mr. Jaspon, Huy Tran, 904 Schopke Lester Road, stated that the use of the property 

would remain the same.  He stated that Aquaponics is the merging together of aquaculture and hydroponics.  The 

way the system works is the nutrients from the fish water is pumped through the hydroponic system and then 

back to the fish tank.  He said this could be an opportunity for Apopka to get back into agriculture. 

 

In response to a question by Ms. Toler, Mr. Tran stated that eventual he would like to offer tours on his facility.    
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene 
closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Pam Toler made a motion to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan Small Scale 

Future Land Use amendment from “County” Residential Low Density (0-4 du/ac) to “City” 
Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for property owned by Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen and 
located at 904 Schopke Lester Road, subject to the information and findings in the staff 
report; and Jeremiah Jaspon seconded the motion.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, 
Robert Ryan, Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote taken by 
poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - CHANGE OF ZONING – CITY OF APOPKA - Chairperson Greene stated this is a 
request to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural 
Estate), for property owned by Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen and located at 904 Schopke Lester Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge regarding 
this item.  None. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Wilkes stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural Estate), for property owned by Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen 
and located at 904 Schopke Lester Road. 
 
Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning 
category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of AG-E to the property.  
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 2, 2015, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2460.  The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.   
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to AG-E is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with the 
general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property owner is requesting the AG-E zoning 
classification to accommodate the use of an existing single-family residential home, as well as an aquaponics 
garden for hobby use. According to the Merriam-Webster Dictionary, aquaponics is a “system of growing plants 
in the water that has been used to cultivate aquatic organisms,” which normally includes fish. The systems use a 
closed-loop system in which plants are grown in water tank systems concurrently with fish. The fish waste is used 
to fertilize the plants, which helps to reduce the need for fertilizer and reduces water use, according the University 
of Florida. The property owner intends to have an aquaponic garden for hobby use only, not for commercial sales 
which makes the use compatible with the requested AG-E zoning district.  
 
The change of zoning application covers approximately 4.42 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) Future Land Use 

8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

6 

 

designation and the City’s proposed AG-E Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 
allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of residential units which could be developed 
at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary because the impacts on 
schools will be de minimus.  
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 
properly notified Orange County on December 11, 2015. 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural Estate) for the property owned by Huy Train and Hai Anh 
Nguyen, located at 904 Schopke Lester Road. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 
part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

Land Use & Traffic Compatibility:  The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Schopke 

Lester Road).   

 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance:  The proposed AG-E zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Low (0 - 

5 du/acre) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. The AG-E zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the 

Residential Low Future Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 

Ag-E District Requirements:  

 

Minimum Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: At 2.5 acres (or 108,900 sq. ft) 

Minimum Lot Width 150 

Setbacks: Front: 45 ft. 

 Rear: 50 ft.  

 Side: 35 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with code requirements for the AG-E district. 

 

Bufferyard Requirements:  Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick or stone finished wall 

adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer wall.   Areas adjacent to agriculture 

districts or activities shall provide a minimum five foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick or stone 

finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are submitted for approval. 

   

 

Allowable Uses:  Single-family dwellings providing they are consistent with the stated purpose of this zoning 

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 12, 2016, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

7 

 

district, commercial wholesale foliage plant production nursery, livestock barns and stables, crop and animal 

production and the buildings and structures necessary to support such production and other accessory uses in 

accordance with article VII of the Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  None. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene 
closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Jeremiah Jaspon made a motion to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from 

“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural Estate), for property owned by the Huy 
Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen and located at 904 Schopke Lester Road, subject to the 
information and findings in the staff report; and Linda Laurendeau seconded the motion.  
Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Robert Ryan, Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, 
and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 
Community Development Director 

 
 

10



Page 11 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by Apopka 

Holdings, LLC, from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office (Max. FAR 0.30), for 
property located at 1120 Clarcona Road and 1124 S. Park Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 
09-21-28-0197-10-213) 

  

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 9, 2016 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT - APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC  

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213 
 
Request: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT 
    FROM: “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) 
    TO:  “CITY” OFFICE (MAX. FAR 0.30) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Apopka Holdings LLC 
 
LOCATION:  1120 Clarcona Road & 1124 S Park Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant Boarding House and Single-Family Residence 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-3 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Mental health and rehabilitation clinic, including inpatient residential 

treatment 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD-PO/I-Residential (Professional Office/Institutional 

Residential) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is being 
processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from 
“County”A-1 (ZIP) to “City” PUD/PO/I/Residential.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.52 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 29 bed boarding house and a single family house 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: Up to 8,829 sq. ft. medical office and a residential facility 

for up to 40 patients.  
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2016\Apopka Holdings LLC\Planning Commission 2 9 16 

 12



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future Land 

Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land use 

designation of Office (max FAR of 0.3) to the property.  

 

The subject properties are currently in the process of being annexed into the City of Apopka.  If approved by City 

Council, the annexations will occur on February 17, 2016, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2387.  The 

proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to 

Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  

Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Office is compatible with the designations assigned to 

abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 0.52 acres.  

 

The applicant intends to redevelop the property for use as a mental health and substance abuse treatment facility, 

including inpatient residential care. The proposed future land use and use for the property is compatible with the 

general character of the surrounding neighborhood. The Office Future Land Use Designation and medical 

office/inpatient residential treatment facility would serve as a transitional use between the surrounding 

institutional church uses and adjacent Industrial future land uses to the northeast and the single and multi-family 

residential to the south, west and southeast of the subject properties. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 

the Office (max FAR 0.3) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed PUD/PO/I/Residential Zoning so 

long as existing building floor area is not expanded on the existing land area comprising the subject site. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this Change of Zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

underlying zoning classification and any residential is ancillary to medical treatment, notification of Orange 

County Public Schools is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 8, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 2, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

March 16, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 22, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

March 4, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

  

13



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in Future 

Land Use from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office (max FAR 0.3) for the property 

owned by Apopka Holdings LLC and located at 1120 Clarcona Road & 1124 S Park Avenue, contingent upon the 

annexation of the properties into the City of Apopka. 

 

Recommend to amend the Future Land Use Map designation from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” 

Planning Unit Development (allowing limited Professional Office\Intuitional uses and Residential) 

 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

14



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Church 

East (County)  Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single-family residential & vacant residential 

South (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single family residence 

West (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Church 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the development of 
residential uses.  The property west of Clarcona Road and south of Washington Street. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Redevelopment:   Policy 3.13. No non-conforming structure shall be substantially expanded. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 
subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts Clarcona Rd.  The vegetative communities 
present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 
0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.j Office Future 
Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Office (max FAR 0.3).  Based on the housing element of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
 15



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): N/A 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  392 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  1921 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  908 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2561 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           16



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  20 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  25 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.015 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 17



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Apopka Holdings LLC 
1120 & 1124 Clarcona Road 

0.52 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  2 dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 8,829 sq. ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 
To: “City” Office (max FAR 0.3) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-3 (ZIP) 

To: “City” PUD/PO/I/Residential 
Parcel ID #: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

18



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

19



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

20



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

21



Page 22 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Apopka Holdings, LLC, from “County” R-3 (Residential) to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I & Residential), for property located at 1120 Clarcona Road and 
1124 S. Park Avenue. (Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213) 

  

22



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  February 9, 2016 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING – APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213 
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: “COUNTY” R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) 

TO: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD - PO/I - 
RESIDENTIAL) (MAX. 0.30 FAR) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Apopka Holdings, LLC 
 
LOCATION:  1120 Clarcona Rd & 1124 S Park Ave 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant rooming house (29 beds) and vacant single-family residential (per 

Orange County Property Appraiser’s records. 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  “County” Low Density Residential (0 – 4 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-3 (ZIP)  
  
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Mental health and substance abuse rehabilitation clinic, includes inpatient 

residential treatment 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD - PO/I - Residential) (Note: this Change 

of Zoning request is being processed along with the request to change the 
Future Land Use Map designation to “City” Office) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.52 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 29 bed boarding house and a single family house 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: Up to 8,829 sq. ft. medical office and a residential facility 

for up to 40 patients. (The current floor area ratio of existing 
the buildings is 0.389, while the maximum floor area ratio 
for the zoning district is 0.30 or 6,795 sq. ft.) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief  
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2016\Apopka Holdings LLC\Planning Commission 2 9 16 

23



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The subject properties are currently in the process of being annexed into the 

City of Apopka.  If approved by City Council, the annexations will occur on February 17, 2016, through the 

adoption of Ordinance No. 2387. The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner.   

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

The applicant proposes to redevelop the property for use as a mental health and substance abuse rehabilitation 

center with inpatient care. An existing 1,933 sq. ft. single-family house will be converted to office and 

rehabilitation services, and the existing rooming house (29 bed capacity; 6,896 sq. ft.) will be converted to a 

residential facility for up to 40 resident patients.  In addition, a community bathroom facilities, kitchen, and dining 

facilities will be provided inside an enclosed building.  With a maximum floor area ratio standard of 0.30, a 

maximum of 6,795 sq. ft. of building floor area is allowed on the .52 acre site.  The combined floor area of the 

two existing buildings is 8,829 sq. ft. or 2,033 square feet above the maximum allowed for acreage on this 

property.  The current floor area ratio of existing buildings is 0.389, while the maximum floor area ratio for the 

zoning district is 0.30.  Existing buildings cannot be expanded or additional buildings constructed until additional 

land is added to the subject site to meet the 0.30 FAR. 

 

The proposed zoning and use is compatible with adjacent zoning districts and the general character of the 

surrounding area. Parcels abutting to the north are used for a church – the St. Paul African Methodist Episcopal 

Church.  Abutting to the Lighthouse Tabernacle church abuts part of the western (rear) property line.  Predominant 

land uses in the abutting and surrounding area are single family residential and religious facilities. The underlying 

PO/I and Residential zoning serves as a transitional zoning between the residential uses to the east, south and 

west, and to the institutional, commercial and industrial zoning and uses to the north and northeast of the subject 

properties. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: all such uses permitted within the PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional PO\I (zoning category) except for following PO\I uses shall be prohibited:  

   

1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions;  

 

2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies or other 

hospital-related items; 

 

3. Boarding or rooming house(s); 

 

4. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district; 

 

5. All uses permitted through a special exception within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district. 

 

B. Over-night inpatient rooming facilities shall be permitted as an ancillary use if the site is used for medical 

care; all other residential uses shall be prohibited. Permitted residential shall be limited as follows:   

 

1. Full-time residential shall be permitted for an on-site caretaker or property manager. 24



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 

2. Residents at the site shall only be patients served by the on-site medical services. 

 

3. Residents typically will not have automobiles parked at the residential facilities.  All on-site parking or 

satellite parking shall be identified at the Final Development Plan. 

 

C.   Single family residential is allowed as a principal use at the site (minimum 7,500 sq. ft. lot) and only as a 

single use. No duplex or multi-family residential will be allowed as a permissible use. No other use may 

occur on the subject site if developed for single family residential use except allowed residential accessory 

structures.  If developed as single family residential, R-3 district development standards shall apply for a 

single family development only.   

 

D. Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land Development Code, not 

addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review of the Final Development Plan submitted 

in association with the PUD district.  

 

E. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within three 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 

At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

F. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline that is adequate to 

protect the public health, safety and welfare, the following zoning and development standards shall apply to 

the development of the Property and for the master site plan: 

 

1. If the substance abuse/mental health treatment facility vacates the site for more than 180 days, the 

permitted uses shall revert to those allowed within the “City” R-3 zoning district.  In such case, a rooming 

house\boarding house is not allowed.  

 

2. Any new structures shall meet the architectural design standards set forth in the Apopka Development 

Design Guidelines dated May 2000, or as amended by the Apopka City Council. Any building, whether 

residential or non-residential, shall be designed with a residential architecture style and shall have a 

pitched roof.  

 

3. The existing two buildings may be used for medical treatment and residential facilities but the gross 

building floor area shall not be expanded.  Buildings may be used for medical office (drug, alcohol and 

mental health medical treatment and associated residential care uses only,  No new buildings or expansion 

of existing buildings shall occur unless the total floor area of all buildings complies with the floor area 

ratio for the PO\I zoning district (.i.e., .030 FAR).   

 

4. The site shall provide a six-foot brick/masonry wall along the western and southern portions of the subject 

properties adjacent to residential uses. 25



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 

5. The subject properties shall meet all other buffer yard and landscaping requirements, as defined in the 

Apopka Land Development Code, to the greatest extent practical, 

 

6. All services occurring at the site, including dining and cooking facilities, shall occur inside an enclosed 

building. 

 

7. At the Final Development Plan, if the subject site cannot accommodate the required number of parking 

spaces, applicant must either obtain long-term contracts with abutting churches to use their parking 

spaces to meet the parking requirement, or the Final Development Plan shall not be approved.  Medical 

patients residing at the residential facility shall not be allowed to park at the site unless a Final 

Development Plan demonstrates sufficient parking is available.   

 

8. Existing floor area of buildings cannot be expanded square feet of the existing buildings can be used for 

the medical treatment and residential facility to comply with the .30 FAR policy requirements set forth 

in Policy 3.1.j.  No more than 40 patients or the maximum number of occupants allowed by building 

code, whichever is lower, shall reside at the residential facilities.  Only patients and employees of the 

medical provider may reside at approved residential facilities. 

 

9. Connection to City central water and sewer service is required prior to issuance of a certificate of 

occupancy.     

 

10. Unless otherwise provided herein, the design of the site through a Final Development Plan shall occur 

consistent with development standards for the PO\I zoning district. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 

the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) Zoning 

classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

underlying zoning classification and any residential is ancillary to medical treatment, notification of Orange 

County Public Schools is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 8, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 2, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

March 16, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 22, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

March 4, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

  

26



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and recommends approval of the change in zoning from R-3 (ZIP) to Planned Unit Development 

(PUD/PO/I/Residential) subject to the PUD zoning and developments standards for the property owned by 

Apopka Holdings, LLC, contingent upon the annexation of the properties into the City of Apopka.  

 

Recommend to change the zoning category from “County” R-3 Residential to “City” Planning Unit Development 

– Professional Office\Institutional and Residential Uses. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

27



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Church\recreation facilities 

East (County)  Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single-family residential & vacant residential 

South (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Single family residence 

West (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-3 Church and single family homes 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Minor Arterial roadway (Clarcona Road). A 

medical office/clinic is a permissible use within the PO/I zoning category.  
Future land use designations and zoning categories assigned to properties 
to the north, south, east, and west is predominantly residential, industrial 
and commercial.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD/PO/I/Residential zoning is compatible with policies set 

forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 (max.) 
     Open Space:    30 percent 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 sq. ft. 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 ft. 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
     Adjacent to Residential:  25 ft. 
 
BUFFERYARD 
REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten (10) 

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent residential use shall provide a 
minimum six (6) foot masonry wall within a ten (10) foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Professional offices, medical or dental clinics and offices, establishments 

for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies, hospitals, 
museums, libraries, churches and educational facilities. 

  

28



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 
Apopka Holdings LLC 

1120 Clarcona Road & 1124 S Park Avenue 
0.52 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  2 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 8,829 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 

To: “City” Office (max FAR 0.3) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-3 (ZIP) 

To: “City” PUD/PO/I/Residential 
Parcel ID #: 09-21-28-0197-10-211 & 09-21-28-0197-10-213 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

29



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 
  

30



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 31



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 

APOPKA HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

32



Page 33 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN –Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center – Owned by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC, 

and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard. (Parcel ID #: 12-21-28-9093-00-010) 
  

33



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 9, 2016 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 

    Building Elevations 

    Waiver Request Letter 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE 

       
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

FOR WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING AND 
CONSIDERATION OF WAIVERS 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Woolbright Wekiva, LLC. 
 
ENGINEER:   Harris Civil Engineers, LLC c/o David W. Taylor, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: ARC3 Architecture 
 
LOCATION: 2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
 
PARCEL ID #:  12-21-28-9093-00-010 
 
LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Retail Shopping Plaza (Retention Pond)   
 
PROPOSED USE: Daycare 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.19 +/- acres 
 
OVERALL  
DEVELOPMENT SIZE: 24.74 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 10,000 sq. ft. – Daycare Center w/ Playground    
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNINGZONING\SITEPLANS\2016\WekivaRiverwalkDaycare\1WekivaRiverwalkDaycareBuildingFDP-PlanningCommission2-9-16.docx 

  

 34



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Office R-1 Single Family Residential 

East (County) Low Density Residential R-1 Single Family Residential 

South (City) Commercial C-1 Retail Shopping Plaza 

West (City) Commercial C-1 Retention 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building - Final Development Plan proposes 

a 10,000 square feet daycare facility with a 5000 square feet playground.  The proposed daycare facility will be 

located in the rear of the shopping plaza at the Northeast corner of the site adjacent to Wekiva Spring Road; within 

a portion of an existing retention pond. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 51 parking spaces are provided (34 required by code) of which 2 are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by an existing driveway cut along Wekiva Springs Road. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site stormwater drainage 

system.  The stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape 

standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

WAIVER REQUESTS: 

 

The applicant is requesting a waiver to LDC Section 6.03.02 which requires a designated, covered drop-off 

and pick-up area for the students. 

 

Justification:  As a security measure, parents or guardians are required by the day care provider to bring the 

child inside the building and sign them in a registrar.   Day cares locating inside an existing commercial 

building or tenant space within a shopping plaza are not required to have a covered drop-off and pick-up area 

for patrons, even though location within the commercial space is considered a change of use. 

 

DRC recommendation-- DRC supports this waiver request. 

 

DRC RECOMMENDATION: 
 

DRC recommendation is subject to the applicant addressing the following outstanding items before the 

application is placed on a City Council meeting: 

 

1. A transportation study prepared by the applicant’s traffic engineer is under review by the City Engineer.  Any 

recommendations generated by this study will be presented at the Planning Commission meeting. 35



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

2. Stormwater calculations must be completed prior to the City Council hearing. 

 

3. A minimum of 20 percent of the day car parking spaces shall be constructed with permeable material. 

 

4. Landscape plans and irrigation plans will be modified to address the minor comments from the Development 

Review Committee. 

 

5. The drive aisle located west of the daycare must be 24 feet in width. 

 

6. No monument sign is allowed along within the Wekiva Springs Road buffer.  Wall signs per code are allowed. 

 

7. All DRC comments must be incorporated into the Final Development Plan prior to submittal of City Council 

agenda item. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 2, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building 

Final Development Plan and to accept all waiver request. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code 

 

Recommend approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building – Final Development Plan, subject to the 

findings of this staff report. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

36



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Engineers, LLC, c/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 37



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Engineers, LLC,  c/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 

 
  

AERIAL MAP 
 
 
 

 38



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 
 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Enigineers, LLC C/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 

 
  

AERIAL SITE MAP 

 

 

39



File Name & Location: G:\PROJ\06388009\CIVIL\SHEETS\C-000 Cover.dwg           Layout: C-000                Printed: Thu, 04 Feb 2016 - 8:55

40



41



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-0

02
 F

in
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.
dw

g 
   

   
   

 L
ay

ou
t: 

C
-0

02
   

   
   

   
   

 P
rin

te
d:

 T
hu

, 0
4 

Fe
b 

20
16

 - 
8:

50

42



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-0

90
 D

em
o.

dw
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-0
90

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 W

ed
, 0

3 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

19
:0

0

43



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-0

90
 D

em
o.

dw
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-0
91

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 W

ed
, 0

3 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

19
:0

0

44



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-0

90
 D

em
o.

dw
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-0
92

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 W

ed
, 0

3 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

19
:0

0

45



E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-1

00
 S

ite
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-1
00

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

9:
19

46



5'

24
'

12'
 TYP.

24'

24'

24'
 TYP.

9'

9'

9'
 TYP.

18'
 TYP.

9'
 T

Y
P

.

12
'

12'
 TYP.

9'

10.5'

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-1

00
 S

ite
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-1
01

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

8:
59

47



36
'

36
'

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-1

00
 S

ite
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-1
02

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

8:
59

48



FFE: 101.2

FOR THIS AREA SEE SHEET C-201

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-2

00
 G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-2
00

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 W

ed
, 0

3 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

19
:0

8

49



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-2

00
 G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-2
01

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 W

ed
, 0

3 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

19
:0

8

50



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-2

00
 G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-2
02

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

9:
34

51



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-2

00
 G

ra
di

ng
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-2
03

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

9:
34

52



Fi
le

 N
am

e 
&

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 G

:\P
R

O
J\

06
38

80
09

\C
IV

IL
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
-3

00
 U

til
iti

es
.d

w
g 

   
   

   
 L

ay
ou

t: 
C

-3
00

   
   

   
   

   
 P

rin
te

d:
 T

hu
, 0

4 
Fe

b 
20

16
 - 

9:
26

53



54



55



(S
E

E
 N

O
TE

 2
)

TR
E

N
C

H
 B

A
C

K
FI

LL

12
" L

IF
TS

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

W/ SIZE OF PIPE
VARIES

SEE NOTE 4

PIPE O.D.COMMON FILL

BEDDING MATERIAL

12" (TYP)

UNDISTURBED EARTH

FINISHED GRADE

NOTES:
1. INITIAL BACKFILL: SELECT COMMON FILL COMPACTED TO 95% (98% UNDER PAVEMENT)  OF

THE MAXIMUM DENSITY AS PER AASHTO T-180.
2. TRENCH BACKFILL: COMMON FILL COMPACTED TO 95% (98% UNDER PAVEMENT) OF THE

MAXIMUM DENSITY AS PER AASHTO T-180.
3. TYPE A BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO FDOT NO. 57 AGGREGATE.
4. 15" MAX. (12" MIN.) FOR PIPE DIAMETER LESS THAN 24"  AND 24" MAX (12" MIN) FOR PIPE

DIAMETER 24" AND LARGER.
5. WATER SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED IN THE TRENCH DURING CONSTRUCTION.
6. ALL PIPE TO BE INSTALLED WITH BELL FACING UPSTREAM TO THE  DIRECTION OF THE

FLOW.
7. BEDDING DEPTH SHALL BE 4" MINIMUM FOR PIPE DIAMETER UP TO 12" AND 6" MINIMUM FOR

PIPE DIAMETER 16" AND LARGER.
8. DEPTH FOR REMOVAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL GOVERN DEPTH OF BEDDING

ROCK BELOW THE PIPE. UTILITIES SHALL DETERMINE IN THE FIELD REQUIRED REMOVAL OF
UNSUITABLE MATERIAL TO REACH SUITABLE FOUNDATION.

9. FINAL RESTORATION IN IMPROVED AREAS SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
REGULATIONS OF GOVERNING AGENCIES.  SURFACE RESTORATION WITHIN ORANGE
COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF R/W UTILIZATION
REGULATIONS AND ROAD CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS.

TRENCH WIDTH

SELECT COMMON
FILL

INITIAL
BACKFILL (S

E
E

N
O

TE
 1

)
(S

E
E

N
O

TE
 3

)

HAUNCHING

BEDDING
(SEE NOTES 7 & 8)

BEDDING AND TRENCHING - TYPE A FIGURE A101

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

DATE: February 11, 2011

(S
E

E
 N

O
TE

 2
)

TR
E

N
C

H
 B

A
C

K
FI

LL

W/ SIZE OF PIPE
VARIES

SEE NOTE 4

PIPE O.D.COMMON FILL

12" (TYP)

FINISHED GRADE

NOTES:
1. INITIAL BACKFILL AND HAUNCHING: SELECT COMMON FILL COMPACTED TO 95% (98%

UNDER PAVEMENT) OF THE MAXIMUM DENSITY AS PER AASHTO T-180.
2. TRENCH BACKFILL: COMMON FILL COMPACTED TO 95% (98% UNDER PAVEMENT) OF THE

MAXIMUM DENSITY AS PER AASHTO T-180.
3.  PIPE BEDDING UTILIZING SELECT COMMON FILL OR BEDDING ROCK IN ACCORDANCE

WITH TYPE A BEDDING AND TRENCHING DETAIL MAY BE REQUIRED AS DIRECTED BY
UTILITIES.

4. 15" MAX. (12" MIN.) FOR PIPE DIAMETER LESS THAN 24"  AND 24" MAX (12" MIN) FOR PIPE
DIAMETER 24" AND LARGER.

5. WATER SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED IN THE TRENCH DURING CONSTRUCTION.
6. ALL PIPE TO BE INSTALLED WITH BELL FACING UPSTREAM TO THE  DIRECTION OF THE

FLOW.
7. FINAL RESTORATION IN IMPROVED AREAS SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL

APPLICABLE  REGULATIONS OF GOVERNING AGENCIES.  SURFACE RESTORATION
WITHIN ORANGE COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF
RIGHT-OF-WAY UTILIZATION REGULATIONS AND ROAD CONSTRUCTION
SPECIFICATIONS.

TRENCH WIDTH

SELECT COMMON
FILL

INITIAL
BACKFILL

(S
E

E
 N

O
TE

 1
)

HAUNCHING

12
" L

IF
TS

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

UNDISTURBED EARTH
(SEE NOTE 3)

BEDDING AND TRENCHING - TYPE B FIGURE A102

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

DATE: February 11, 2011

FINISHED GRADE

LOCATING WIRE

LOCATING WIRE

PIPE LOCATING WIRE FIGURE A114

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

WATER,
WASTEWATER,
OR RECLAIMED MAIN

NYLON STRAPS,
3 PER JOINT
(SEE NOTE 1)

NOTES:
1. ALL PIPE SHALL REQUIRE INSULATED LOCATING WIRE (10 GAUGE SOLID COPPER) CAPABLE

OF DETECTION BY A CABLE LOCATOR AND SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH NYLON STRAPS TO
TOP CENTERLINE OF THE PIPE.

2. LOCATING WIRE SHALL BE CONTINUOUS INSIDE VALVE BOXES AND SHALL EXTEND 12"
ABOVE TOP OF COLLAR.

3. WIRE INSULATION SHALL BE COLOR CODED FOR THE TYPE OF PIPE BEING INSTALLED.

DATE: February 11, 2011

VERTVERT HORIZVERTHORIZVERTHORIZ HORIZ

HORIZONTAL & VERTICAL SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS

FIGURE A116

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS FOR

WATER, WASTEWATER AND RECLAIMED WATER MAINS

NOTES:

1. THIS SEPARATION REQUIREMENT IS TO PROVIDE ACCESSIBILITY FOR CONSTRUCTION AND
MAINTENANCE. THREE FEET OF HORIZONTAL SEPARATION IS THE MINIMUM FOR PIPES
WITH THREE FEET OF  COVER.  FOR PIPES INSTALLED AT GREATER DEPTHS, PROVIDE AN
ADDITIONAL FOOT OF SEPARATION FOR EACH ADDITIONAL FOOT OF DEPTH.

2. THE 18-INCH SEPARATION REQUIREMENT APPLIES WHEN THE STORM PIPE CROSSES
ABOVE THE OCU MAIN, AND WHEN THE STORM PIPE HAS A DIAMETER EQUAL TO OR
GREATER THAN 24 INCHES.  OTHERWISE, THE REQUIRED SEPARATION IS 12 INCHES.

3. THIS SEPARATION REQUIREMENT COMPLIES WITH MINIMUM FDEP SEPARATION
REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN 62-555.314, FAC.  VARIANCES FROM THE FDEP
REQUIREMENTS  MUST COMPLY WITH 62-555.314(5), FAC AND MUST BE APPROVED
INDIVIDUALLY BY BOTH FDEP AND OCU.

4. DISTANCES GIVEN ARE FROM OUTSIDE OF PIPE TO OUTSIDE OF PIPE.
5. NO WATER PIPE SHALL PASS THROUGH OR COME IN CONTACT WITH ANY PART OF

SANITARY OR STORM WATER MANHOLE OR STRUCTURE.

PROPOSED
UTILITY

POTABLE WATER

RECLAIMED
WATER

WASTEWATER
(GRAVITY AND FM)

POTABLE
WATER

RECLAIMED
WATER

WASTEWATER
(GRAVITY & FM) STORM SEWER

3'
NOTE 1

6'
NOTE 3

12"

12"
NOTE 3

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

12"
NOTE 3

12"
NOTE 3

12"

6'
NOTE 3

12"
NOTE 3

12"

12"12"

12"/18"
NOTE 2 & 3

12"/18"
NOTE 2

12"/18"
NOTE 2

RIGHT OF WAY 3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

3'
NOTE 1

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

3'
NOTE 1 & 3

3'
NOTE 1 & 3

3'
NOTE 1 & 3

DATE: February 11, 2011

SEWER

WASTE WATER

RECLAIMED WATER

RECLAIMED

WATER

POTABLE WATER

NOTE:
1. LOCKING LIDS ARE REQUIRED ON ALL VALVE BOXES.

TYPICAL LOCKING
BOLT

TYPICAL VALVE BOX COVER FIGURE A110

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

DATE: February 11, 2011

FIGURE A202

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

FLOW

EXPANSION MATERIAL TO
BE PLACED BETWEEN DIP
AND CONCRETE SLAB

PLAN

90° BEND (MJ/MJ)

RESTRAINED JOINTS (TYP)

6" CONCRETE
SLAB (2500 PSI
CONCRETE)

PROFILE

DOUBLE DETECTOR CHECK VALVE

ASSEMBLY

BYPASS BACKFLOW
ASSEMBLY

BYPASS 5/8" X 3/4"
DETECTOR METER,
MAINTAINED BY UTILITY

FIRELINE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY

90° BEND

FLANGED JOINT
12" (TYP)

3'
 C

O
V

E
R

12
"PIPE SUPPORT

(TYP)

OS & Y VALVES (FLG)
(2 REQUIRED)

NOTES:
1. REQUIRED FOR SITES WITH SEPARATE DOMESTIC AND FIRE SYSTEM SUPPLY PIPING.
2. BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY SHALL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE PROPERTY

OWNER. UTILITIES SHALL OWN AND MAINTAIN THE METER.
3. UTILITY EASEMENT REQUIRED FOR BY-PASS METER READING.  MINIMUM EASEMENT

SIZE IS 10 FEET BY 15 FEET.
4. DETAIL NOT APPLICABLE WHEN AN RPZ IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

BACKFLOW PREVENTION MANUAL.
5. SERVICES 4-INCH AND LARGER SHALL BE DIP FROM THE POINT OF CONNECTION AT

THE MAIN TO THE METER ASSEMBLY IF THE MAIN IS ON THE SAME SIDE OF THE
STREET AS THE ASSEMBLY.  IF THE MAIN IS ON THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF THE STREET
AS THE ASSEMBLY, A MINIMUM OF ONE SEGMENT OF PIPE IMMEDIATELY UPSTREAM
FROM THE METER ASSEMBLY SHALL BE DIP.

6. ALL FLANGES: PIPE, VALVES AND APPURTENANCES SHALL HAVE 316 S.S. HARDWARE.

5'
 (T

Y
P

)

RISER FLG X MJ

FROM MAIN

DIP

TO SERVICE

DATE: February 11, 2011

CHECK VALVE
21

2 " x 21
2" x 4"

F.D.C.

AA

SECTION A - A

PLAN

FIGURE A121-1

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

MJ TAPPING
SLEEVE

NEW PIPE

RESTRAINED
MECHANICAL JOINT

EXISTING
PIPE

RESILIENT SEAT
TAPPING GATE
VALVE W/ VALVE BOX

RESTRAINED
MECHANICAL JOINT

MJ TAPPING SLEEVE AND GATE VALVE

ASSEMBLY FOR WATER AND RECLAIMED WATER

SPLIT GLAND
TAPPING SLEEVE

5'
 M

IN
 F

R
O

M
 B

A
C

K
O

F 
B

E
LL

 A
N

D
 S

P
IG

O
T

IN
S

E
R

TI
O

N
 L

IN
E

DATE: February 11, 2011

56



OUTSIDE WALL

5" MIN

2"

4'-0" MIN

12" MIN

3'-0" MAX 
1'-6" MIN

2" MIN

8" MIN
9"

INSIDE WALL

2 COURSES OF BRICK (MIN)

PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE FIGURE A301

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

DATE: February 11, 2011

NOTES:
1. DROP CONNECTIONS ARE REQUIRED WHENEVER INVERT OF INFLUENT SEWER IS  24" OR

MORE ABOVE THE INVERT OF THE MANHOLE.  SEE MANHOLE  CONNECTION DETAIL.
2. ECCENTRIC CONE DESIGN MAY BE USED FOR CONFLICT RESOLUTION WITH OCU

APPROVAL.
3. A FLOW CHANNEL SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED INSIDE MANHOLE TO DIRECT INFLUENT INTO

FLOW STREAM.
4. LIFT HOLES THROUGH STRUCTURE ARE NOT PERMITTED.
5. WRAP TIGHTLY AROUND CASTING JOINTS AND APPLY HIGH INTENSITY PROPANE TORCH

TO EFFECTIVELY SEAL THEM FROM GROUND WATER INFILTRATION.
6. HDPE ADJUSTING RINGS MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR BRICK RISERS.
7. SECTION HEIGHTS VARY AS REQUIRED, AND AS AVAILABLE, FROM APPROVED

MANUFACTURERS LISTED IN APPENDIX D.

SET COVERS FLUSH IN
PAVED AREAS

MANHOLE FRAME & COVER
(SEE STANDARD DETAIL)

FRAMES BEDDED IN MORTAR

EXTERNAL MANHOLE
HEAT SHRINK SEAL
(TYP) SEE NOTE 5

APPROVED  LINER
PER SPECIFICATIONS

BENCHING PER
SPECIFICATIONS

9"

9"

6"
MIN

PRE-PRIMED
JOINT SURFACES

PRE-MOLDED PLASTIC JOINT
SEALER, APPLIED TO BOTH
LIPS

COMPLETED
JOINT WITH
SQUEEZE-OUT

PRE-PRIMED
JOINT SURFACES

4 COURSES (MAX) OR MIN 5" TO
MAX 10" HDPE ADJUSTING RING

2'-0"8"

FDOT # 57 STONE

0.8D (EFFLUENT PIPE DIAMETER)

SQUEEZE-OUT, MIN  12"
INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR

9"

CONCRETE WITH ADMIX

PVC 
PVC

TEE

GRAVITY OUTSIDE DROP CONNECTION (NEW MANHOLE)

FIGURE A302

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

NOTES:
1. DROP PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL BE OF EQUAL SIZE AND MATERIAL AS THE INFLUENT

SEWER.
2. AN OUTSIDE DROP CONNECTION SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL INFLUENT LINES WHICH

HAVE AN INVERT 2' OR MORE ABOVE THE MANHOLE INVERT.
3. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE THE PRESENCE OF UTILITIES INSPECTOR DURING

CORING AND CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING MANHOLES.

PRECAST MANHOLE WALL

INLET CONNECTION AT INVERT

CONCRETE ENCASEMENT
OF VERTICAL PIPE
DROP PIPE
(SEE NOTE 1)

90° BEND

2"

INFLUENT SEWER
(SEE NOTE 2)

PRECAST
MANHOLE
WALL

STAINLESS STEEL BAND

RESILIENT CONNECTOR

STAINLESS STEEL PIPE CLAMP
PRECAST
MANHOLE
WALL

CAST IN-PLACE
SEAL

STANDARD CONNECTION

PVC PLUG WITH TOP HALF
AREA OPEN

GRAVITY OUTSIDE DROP CONNECTION (EXISTING MANHOLE)

NEW AND EXISTING MANHOLES NEW MANHOLES ONLY

GRAVITY MANHOLE CONNECTION

6"
MIN

6"
 M

IN
6"

 M
IN

6"
MIN

#4 90° HOOK AT 8" O.C.E.W.

DATE: February 11, 2011

4-3/4" MIN

STANDARD MANHOLE FRAME AND COVER FIGURE A304

GENERAL

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

APPENDIX A

ORANGE COUNTY UTILITIES 

STANDARD DRAWINGS

RAISED 1-1/2" LETTERS
FLUSH WITH TOP OF COVER

2 - NON PENETRATING
PICK HOLES

PLAN

ELEVATION

1-1/2" MIN

MACHINED
MATING
SURFACES

39"

7"

25 3/4"

24" ± 3/8"

NOTES:
1. ONLY APPLIES TO UTILITIES OWNED AND MAINTAINED MANHOLES.  "ORANGE COUNTY"

SHALL NOT APPEAR ON PRIVATE MANHOLES.

SANITARY

SEWERORANGE  COUNTY  F LOR I D

A

BO
AR

D
 O

F  COUNTY  COMMI SS IONER
S

DATE: February 11, 2011

M

FDOT STD. INDEX 214

57





℄

58




























FLORIDA LAW REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY
OWNERS OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES NO LESS

THAN TWO (2) DAYS PRIOR TO
EXCAVATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR
THIS PROJECT IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S
ORDINANCE 2069 ADOPTED MAY 21, 2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES
WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION STANDARDS.

SIGNATURE REG. NO. DATE

SOD:  8,733.99 SQ. FT.  68%
BEDS:  4,112.57 SQ. FT.  32%
TOTAL: 12,846.56 SQ. FT.

C:\Users\Dale\Desktop\iomega\2016\01-January\Wekiva Day Care Site\Dale- Wekiva Daycare.dwg, L-1, 2/3/2016 4:22:09 PM
59




























FLORIDA LAW REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY
OWNERS OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES NO LESS

THAN TWO (2) DAYS PRIOR TO
EXCAVATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR
THIS PROJECT IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S
ORDINANCE 2069 ADOPTED MAY 21, 2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES
WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION STANDARDS.

SIGNATURE REG. NO. DATE

NOTE:
NO RISERS SHALL BE INSTALLED FOR
IRRIGATION HEADS.

C:\Users\Dale\Desktop\iomega\2016\01-January\Wekiva Day Care Site\Dale- Wekiva Daycare.dwg, L-2, 2/3/2016 4:21:41 PM
60




























C:\Users\Dale\Desktop\iomega\2016\01-January\Wekiva Day Care Site\Dale- Wekiva Daycare.dwg, L-3, 1/13/2016 2:57:12 PM
61




























62










  

 
































 

63



SECTION  12 - 21 - 28
SEMINOLE  COUNTY,  FLORIDA

 TOPOGRAPHIC  SURVEY
Tinklepaugh

64



 

- THIS LIGHTING DESIGN IS BASED ON INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY OTHERS.
  CHANGES IN ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, AREA GEOMETRY AND OBJECTS WITHIN
  THE LIGHTED AREA MAY PRODUCE ILLUMINATION VALUES DIFFERENT
  FROM THE PREDICTED RESULTS SHOWN ON THIS LAYOUT.
- THIS LAYOUT IS BASED ON .IES FILES THAT WERE LAB TESTED OR COMPUTER
  GENERATED. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY VARY.

  RESPONSIBILITY TO SUBMIT THE SITE PHOTOMETRICS AND LUMINAIRE
  SPECS TO THE LOCAL INSPECTOR BEFORE ORDERING TO ENSURE
  THIS PLAN COMPLIES WITH LOCAL LIGHTING ORDINACES.

- DUE TO CHANGING LIGHTING ORDINANCES IT IS THE CONTRACTORS

2707 SATSUMA

Notes:

Project:

TECHLIGHT

DALLAS, TX
75229

FILE:

Date:0 20 40

SCALE

WEKIVA
RIVERWALK
PARKING

wekiva.agi

1-11-16

Notes:
1. Calculation at grade.
2. Based on 20' AFG pole mntg/13' AFG bldg mnt.
3. Site dimensions and scale are approximate.

1
A

2
A

3
A

A
4

5
A

6
A

B
7

B
8 9

B

B
10

11
B

B
12

13
C C

14

C
15

C
16

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.3

0.2 0.4 0.4 0.8 1.1 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.4 1.0 1.4 1.5

3.1 4.2 4.6 3.3 2.1 1.4 1.9 2.8 4.1 4.5 4.1

3.5 4.5 4.3 2.8 1.8 1.5 1.8 2.3 3.8 4.4 3.9 4.9 4.7

4.1 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.0 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.5 3.1 3.6 4.6 4.3

4.6 4.4 3.0 2.3 1.7 2.4 2.9 2.8 3.3 3.4 3.8 4.4 4.4 4.3

1.0 4.0 3.7 2.3

0.8 3.6 3.2 2.3

0.9 3.7 3.2 2.5

0.8 3.5 2.8 2.0

4.3 3.5 2.0

1.5 4.2 3.6 2.4

1.9 4.0 3.5 2.8

2.4 4.5 4.7 3.2

3.7 4.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1
0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.7

0.7

0.8

1.0

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.6

0.2

0.00.10.50.70.80.90.80.80.60.50.30.30.30.40.80.60.20.20.10.0

1.4 2.0 3.8 5.2 4.7 4.2 4.2 4.9 4.8 5.0 5.3 5.6 4.7 2.0

1.1 2.0 5.0 7.5 4.2 4.4 4.2 4.3 4.6 4.6 5.0 4.1 4.7 2.5

1.1 2.0 4.3 4.4 1.8 1.1

1.1 2.2 3.6 4.1 2.7 1.4

1.1 2.2 3.6 4.0 2.0 1.1

1.0 2.0 4.1 4.2 1.5 1.2

1.1 2.1 4.0 4.3 1.5 1.1

1.6 2.4 3.7 4.1 2.4 1.3

1.8 2.3 3.8 4.4 2.4 1.3

1.9 2.0 4.0 4.2 1.3 0.8

1.8 1.6 2.6 3.7 1.4 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.7 2.4 2.3 0.9 1.0 0.5

1.3 1.1 1.5 1.9 0.9 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.4 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.1

LSBW-4-C-8-T3-B-LEDOPTIC-W-FOUR BRICK TYPE 3 850MA LED 0.900SINGLEN.A.A

LHMWP-1-C-8-T3-F-ONE BRICK TYPE 3 1400MA LED WALL PACK 0.900SINGLEN.A.B6

Label

6

DescriptionLLFArrangementQtySymbol

Luminaire Schedule

Lumens/Lamp

SINGLE LHSWP-1-C-4-T3-F-ONE BRICK TYPE 3 1400MA LED WALL PACK 4 N.A.C 0.900

013

0

9

15

B 13

C14

013C

0

0

13

13C

16

13

11 B

0

B12

0

0

13C13

13

10 B 13

0

4

6 A 20 0

7 B 13

0

3

020A

20

A 20 0

Luminaire Location Summary

A

ZLabelLumNo

8

20 0

5

1

A

2

020

B

Tilt

0

A

N.A.

Min Avg/Min

0.1

1.0

Max

N.A.0.0PROP LINE FcIlluminance

Calculation Summary

Label

0.36

UnitsCalcType

49.0025.00

Avg

75.00BUILD EXTERIOR Illuminance Fc 2.65 7.5 0.1

Max/Min

Illuminance 4.92.50

26.50

PARKING AND DRIVE Fc

65



CC

C

3

3 C

D4

4 D

AA

A

1

1 A

B2

2 B

66



67



68



69



70


	Top
	1 02-09-16 - PC - Minutes - 01-12-16 Minutes
	PC 01-12-16 Minutes.pdf

	1. 02-09-16 - PC - Public Hearing - Legislative - Future Land Use Amendment - Apopka Holding LLC
	1 Apopka Holdings LLC - 1120 &amp; 1124 Clarcona Rd -  FLU - PC 02-09-16.pdf

	2. 02-09-16 - PC - Public Hearing - Quasi-Judicial - Change of Zoning - Apopka Holdings LLC
	1 Apopka Holdings LLC - 1120 &amp; 1124 Clarcona Rd -  ZON - PC 2-9-16.pdf

	1. 02-09-16 - PC - Site Plan - Quasi-Judicial - Final Development Plan - Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center
	1 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building FDP - Planning Commission 2-9-16.pdf
	2 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center Site Plan-Landscape Plan.pdf
	3 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center Elevations.pdf
	4 Wekiva Riverwalk DayCare Waiver Letter.pdf

	Bottom

